WEST CHESTER TOWNSHIP
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 08, 2025 — Regular Meeting

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mr. Mear, Ms. Rogers, Ms. Glenn
MEMBERS ABSENT: Mr. Sanchez, Ms. Kemp
ALTERNATES PRESENT: Mr. Hilton, Mr. Weston (Seated)
STAFF PRESENT: Tim Dawson — Township Planner

Jeanne Campbell — Property Advisor
Jonathan Roach — Frost Brown Todd

CALL TO ORDER: 6:00 P.M.

ADJOURNMENT 6:20 P.M.

Meeting was held at West Chester Township Hall.

Mr. Mear called the meeting of the West Chester Board of Zoning Appeals to order.
Mr. Dawson called the role. A quorum was established.

Old Business:

Approval meeting minutes from 08-11-25

Motion by Ms. Glenn
Seconded by Ms. Rogers

Aye: Mr. Mear, Ms. Glenn, Mr. Weston, Ms. Rogers, Mr. Hilton
Nay: none
Minutes were approved 5-0

Approval of Resolution 25-09 Misty Sirch, for 222394536 Delaware, LL.C
Motion by Ms. Rogers

Seconded by Ms. Glen

Aye: Mr. Mear, Ms. Glenn, Mr. Weston, Ms. Rogers, Mr. Hilton

Nay: none

Approval of Resolution 25-09 approved 5-0

Mr. Mear swore in Mr. Dawson.

Mr. Dawson swore in the participants as a group.

September 08, 2025



BZA 25-10 Jefferey Bass - 8290 Shadyside Lane West Chester, OH 45069

Mr. Dawson presented that the applicant has requested an administrative appeal from the 2018
West Chester Township Zoning Resolution, Article 11.09(c) for the construction of a four-foot
fence in a front yard on the corner lot. The subject property is located at 8290 Shadyside Lane.
The property, zoned R1-A, a suburban residence district property surrounded by the same
zoning. Per the County Auditor's records, the home was built in 1989. The property was obtained
by the current owner in 2013. The original fence was constructed in either 2004 or 2005, based
on the aerial image archive. The Board of Zoning Appeals is considering the applicant's request
for the constructed fence in the front yard. The applicant stated they replaced a fence that had
already been constructed in the same location and depended on their contractor to apply for the
permits. Staff conducted case history, research on the property and a fence was built in 2004 or
2005. However, staff does not have a record of a permit or a variance approval from the Board of
Zoning Appeals to allow the previous fence. While the owner’s confusion on the previous fence
is unfortunate, the replacement of the fence in 2024 should have been constructed to the
standards at that time. If permits would have been submitted properly, in considering the
applicant's request, the Board needs to consider other properties in the area and whether the
request fits the character of the area. The Board should also consider whether the request will
cause a detriment to any neighboring properties and whether the spirit of intent of the zoning
resolution is still met. The standards also require the Board to determine if there would be any
beneficial use of the property without the given request. The applicant was issued a violation on
April 14th based on the 2018 Zoning Resolution, Article 10.24, which is why the Board’s
considerations are based on the previous articles. However, staff had recognized the need to
reconsider the 2018 requirements based on the number of proposals for appeals and past
decisions of the board to permit a majority of them with conditions. Therefore, the adoption of
the 2025 Township Zoning Resolution took place on May 8th. Fences are permitted within the
front yard setback on corner lots if they meet the following requirements, not exceeding four feet
in height and are 0 to 50% opaque. This proposed fence does meet those requirements. Further
considerations are for the location within the right of way. The right of way extends 30ft from
the center line of the public road. Staff has measured an approximate distance on the aerial image
and it seems the fence is located five feet within the right of way. If approved, consideration
should be given for the fence to be located outside of the right of way and final inspections to be
coordinated with the County Engineer's office prior to approval of that inspection. The owners of
all 18 properties shown in blue have been notified prior to the hearing and none have contacted
the staff with any comments at this time. Mr. Dawson stated that at this time he would be happy
to answer any questions that the Board may have.

Since the Board had no questions, Mr. Mear called any proponents forward.
Proponent:

Mr. Whiteman approached the podium and stated his name, address and that he had been sworn in.
Mr. Whiteman stated that he lived directly across from the side of Mr. Bass’s house. He stated that
if he walks out his front door, he is looking directly at the side of Mr. Bass’s house and the fence.
Mr. Whiteman stated that it is a beautifully constructed fence and multiple people in the
neighborhood have spoken of what a nice fence it was. He stated that it is well constructed and that

September 08, 2025



he does not have any issues or concerns with the location of the fence or how it is built. He stated
that he was in favor of keeping the fence where it was at. There were no further questions from the
Board.

Opponent: NONE

Neutral: NONE
Mr. Mear called the applicant forward.

Applicant: Jefferey Bass
8290 Shadyside Lane West Chester, OH 45069

The applicant’s wife came forward, stated her name and address and that she was sworn in. She
stated that she wanted to apologize for not following protocol with West Chester Township. She
stated that it was not intentional and that they definitely wanted to follow the guidelines. She stated
that they thought it was the responsibility of the contractor to get the permits. She stated that the
contractor did contact Butler County, but not West Chester Township. She stated that whatever
decision the Board made they would definitely follow it.

Ms. Glenn stated that she understood that they were willing to comply and that she thought it
seemed like the law would require the fence to be really close to the big tree. Ms. Bass stated that
yes, the fence would be close to the tree. She stated that they did have it surveyed and there was
some issue with the gas and electric. She stated that she has that paperwork. Ms. Glenn asked if the
fence could be moved further inward. Ms. Bass stated she thought it could be moved past the tree,
but she was asking her husband for clarification.

Mr. Bass approached the podium and stated his name and address and that he had been sworn in.
Mr. Bass stated that the fence had originally been a little closer to the tree line, but once it was
surveyed it showed either gas or electric lines in that spot and the contractor did not want to build
there. He stated that is why they came further out.

Mr. Hilton asked Mr. Bass if he could recall how far inside of the tree the lines ran. Mr. Bass stated
he thought closer to the house, but he stated he thought it would be doable. He stated he did not
want to say it wasn’t doable, but that from an aesthetic point he felt that it had better curb appeal to
the neighborhood on that side of the tree.

With no further questions, Mr. Mear closed the public portion of the case and went into
deliberation.

Board Deliberation
Mr. Weston asked Mr. Dawson if where the fence sits now, could there be issues with utilities

where the fence might have to be removed. Mr. Dawson stated that typically within a
subdivision, the utilities are located within a right of way. Mr. Dawson stated that the county

September 08, 2025



engineers require that the fence be located outside of the right of way. Mr. Dawson stated that
the issue might be that maybe they adjusted it a little further in to miss one of the utilities. But
the ultimate problem is that they're within the right of way in the utility easements right now. Mr.
Dawson stated that what he shows in the picture is an approximation and the County would have
to do a proper measurement and inspection to ensure the fence is relocated outside of the right of
way. Mr, Weston wanted to clarify that approximately 5 feet from the line shown would be about
proper location. Mr. Dawson stated that was what he believed, but it was just an approximation
and would have to be verified.

Mr. Hilton asked legal if they were to grant a variance, is that even possible with the existence of
the right of way. Can they override the County right of way? Mr. Roach stated that the County
has its own rights in the right of way. He stated that what the Board needed to focus on is the
standards for a variance and whether that is appropriate here.

Mr. Mear stated he drove through the area and the street corner is not highly busy. He stated he
did not feel there would be interference.

Ms. Glenn stated there was nothing detrimental in terms of what the standards would be. She
stated it would improve the property because it was a corner property and most people want
some kind of fence on a corner property. She stated the distance was not a substantial ask.

Mr. Mear stated that as long as the permit process is followed, he did not believe it was an issue.
Mr. Weston asked Ms. Glenn if she did not feel it was substantial to move it five feet. Ms. Glenn
stated that according to the applicant that it would actually interfere with electric lines. Mr.
Dawson stated that all of that would be worked out at the permitting stage. Mr. Dawson stated
that as legal stated, if you approve as-is, that’s what zoning will look at on the zoning approval,
but then it will go to the County for further approval. Ms. Glenn stated that it meets conditions so
she is leaning toward a yes.

Ms. Glenn made a motion to approve case number BZA 25-10 Jefferey Bass.

Mr. Hilton seconded the motion.

Aye: Mr. Mear, Ms. Glenn, Mr. Weston, Ms. Rogers, Mr. Hilton
Nay: None

The application was approved 5-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

Mr. Mear stated that the next BZA Meeting would be October 15, 2025 at 6 P.M. due to the
Monday holiday.

The Board adjourned the September 08, 2025 meeting at 6:20 P.M.

September 08, 2025



These Minutes do not purport to be the entire record. A complete transcription of these
proceedings was taken under supervision of the Secretary from an audiotape and may be
obtained upon written request. Any charges for preparing such transcripts shall be borne
by the person requesting same and must be prepaid.

BZA Vice Chair: BZA Secretary:
W
Mike Mear Tim Daws6n ¢ &

September 08, 2025



WEST CHESTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL
APPLICATION NO. BZA 25-10

WHEREAS, Jeffrey Bass filed application no. 25-10 on August 1, 2025 with the Board of
Zoning Appeals under Article 8, Subsection 8.04 of the West Chester Zoning
Resolution, requesting an administrative appeal from Article 11.09 (¢) to
permit a 4> fence in the front yard of a corner lot for a property in an R-1A
(Suburban Residence) District, as applied to the property located at 8290
Shadyside Lane, Parcel # M5620-350-000-037, Section 8, Town 3, Range 2
(West Chester Township, Butler County); and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on said application on September 8, 2025, notice of
which was given to parties of interest in writing and also by digital
publication on the Township website and social media posts at least ten (10)

days prior to the date of the hearing in accordance with Section 519.15 of the
Ohio Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, Article 8 et. seq. of the West Chester Zoning Resolution empowers the Board
to authorize administrative appeals that will not be contrary to the public
interest, and

WHEREAS, the Board has considered all of the information and testimony presented at
the public hearing and concludes that the requested administrative appeal is
not contrary to the public interest and is consistent with the West Chester
Zoning Resolution, paying particular attention to Section 8.053.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that by virtue of the foregoing, the Board of Zoning Appeals
does hereby approve the request for an administrative appeal from Article
11.09(c) to approve the aforementioned request.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all plats, plans, applications and other data submitted be
and are hereby made a part of this Resolution.

Adopted and journalized at a regularly scheduled meeting of the West Chester
Township Board of Zoning Appeals in session on the 8 day of September,
2025

7

/W Dl s
Mike Méar, — Timgthy Wawson, <
Vice Chair BZA Secretary




